ot ]

19
GuraAoN Distrior.] - - [Pamr A,

e

“Bection B.—History.
‘The following is taken from the last Gazetteer :—

v’

CHAP. L. B.
History.

- “For anaccount of the early history of Mew4t, as far as i can Early his.
be gleaned from the Muhammadan historians, Chapter I of Major Powlett’s 1077 of Mewit.

¢ Gazetteer of Alwar’ may be referred to. The salient points of the *

history are the turbulence of the Mewdtis, who, relying on the strength
of their hill retreats, plundered the country far and wide whenever the
central aunthority was from any cause temporarily weakened ; the severe
measures from time to time adopted to repress them ; and the important
parts played in the time of Taimir by Bahddar Néhar, the repated founder
of the Khanzddds, and in that of Bdbar by Hasan Khan Mewiti, with
whose death the political importance of the Khanzdda lords of Mew4s
ceased. Since then there has never been a sole and independent ruler
of Mewst, which at present is partitioned between Alwar, Bhartpur, and
Gurgéon. B

In the time of Akbar the present Gurgdon district was contained in
subahs Delhi and Agra, and comprised, wholly or partly, the following
Sarkdrs and Dasturs :—

Subah Delhi. * Sarkdr and Dastur Mahdls or Parganas,
Barkér Dasturs Tijara Indor
Delhi - Palwal Ujina
Jharsa Umri- Umra
Barkér Dasturs Pinangwan
Rowéri Bahora Bisru .
Téoru Bhasohra (? Bichor)
Rewsri Jhamriwat
Sohna . Khinpur
. Koh4na or Lohéna S4kras
Bubah Agra. . Santhwiri
Barkdr Dastur ‘ ) : Firozpur
Suhar or Pahdri Hodat : Kotla
Ghasera
Nagina

During the flourishing times of the Mughal empire Gurgéon may be
said to be without a history ; but with its decay, . mention of the district
is again found in the pages of the historians, and events occurred which
still live, although often distorted and exaggerated, in the memories
of the people. At first the prominent actors are Rao Bah4dar Singh
in the centre of the district, the Biloch chiefs of Bahddargarh and
Farukhnagar in the north, and the great Jat ruler, Séraj Mal of Bhart-
pur, in the sonth. In the time of Aurangzeb there was a noted free-
booter of Dahdna (now BAdshahpur) by caste a Badgujar Réjpat, and
by name HathiSingh. Churaman of Bhartpur is said to have interceded
with the Emperor for his pardon, which was granted on condition of
his killing a noted Meo robber named Sanwalia. This condition having
been fulfilled, he was granted Ghasera, with eleven other villages, in-
cluding NGh and Malab. He was succeeded by his son Rao Bahédar
Singh, wbo extended his rule over, according to tradition, a country yielding
52 lakhs, or, in reality, over the parganas of Indor, Kotla, Ghasera
and Sohna, But there was one duty incumbent on a Badgujar chief on
pain of incurring the carse of leprosy, pronounced by his ancestor
when turned out of Jaipur by the Kachwahas on any Badgujar Réja
who should not fight with Jaipur. So Babidar Singh made a treaty
with Malhar Rao (Scindia). intending to attack the Jaipur R4ja, who,
in his turn, wrote to Sdraj Mal of Bhartpur, instigating him to attack
Ghasera, which he might then keep. Bahddar Singh was hunting beyond
the Jamna when he met Sdraj Mal on his way to Ghasers, but at
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the time of the meeting, only accompanied by a few followers. He greeted
Bahdidar Singh as a friend, and professed to have a great desire to see
bis far-famed sword. Bah4dar Singh courteonsly complied, but when
he saw his sword being passed away from him among the J4t chief’s
followers, he discovered the treachery, and fled for his Lfe to a distant
ferry on the Jamna, whence he escaped to Ghasera. There he was
besieged by Stiraj Mal, and after a heroic defence the fort was captqred H
Bahddar Singh and all his family, except one grandson, Bhagwant Singh, -
perishéd, Bahddar Singh’s wives blowing themselves up with. the
magazine when no hope of victory was left, Ghasera was taken by
Stiraj Mal in 1810 Sambat==1767 a.p. .

Before this the J4t chief had 'extended his rule over the south and
sounth-east of the district, practising horrible cruelties on the Meos in
endeavouring to bring them under subjection ; and he now pushed his
conquests to the north, and thus came into conflict with the Biloches of
Farukhnagar. The Emperor Farrukhsiar (1712 to 1718 a.p.) granted a
Biloch - named Dalel Khan, but who afterwards earned the title of Faujdér
Kban, the son of a zaminddr of Khurrampur in this district, geveral large
jagirs and the site of the present town of Furukhnagar, which was founded
by him. His four eldest soms were killed in battle, and he was succeeded
by his youngest son, Kamgar Khan, whose son, Muse Khan, was the
ruler of Farukhnagar at the time of Sdraj Mal’s invasion. Straj Mal
captured Farukhnagar and took away Muse Khan with him to Bhartpar,
where he was kept prisoner until SGraj Mal’s death in 1764 A.p. when
he escaped by the connivance of the jailor and regained possession
of Farukhnagar, which continued to be ruled by this Biluch family until
the Mutiny of 1857. After Siraj Mal’s death the J4t power declined,
and for a short interval the energy of Najatkuli Khan recovered
most of the district for the Mughal Emperor; but in 1788 he
fell away from the Emperor, and was besieged by him at Gokalgarh,
near Rewdri, whence he escaped to Kénound and died; the famous
George Thomas distinguished himself in this .siege of Gokalgarh,
Then there follows the confused period of Mahratta domination, the rule of
the ¢ ghorawalas’ or horsemen as they are still called in the district.

During their domination the district was usually entrusted to Scindia
and French officers, whose head-quarters were at Koel, in Aligarh,
and the best known of whom to the people are Piru S#hib and Louis
Béhib, Generals Perron and Bourquin. Their rule seems not to have
been over-trammelled by law, if a story is trme which is told by the
Réjput lambardirs of Ghamrauj near Bhundsi, to the effect that a
complaint had been made against them by their Gujar enemies who
live on the other side of the valley, and the French officer. one pay rode
to their village ; and when the lambarddrs, as usual, went ont to meet
him, be at once cut them down with his own hand. -The fﬁ.!hous ad-
venturer, George Thomas, had assigned to him, in 1793, the district
of Firozpur, and once plundered Gurgfon, and took off with him to
Tijéra fourteen of the chief men, whom he afterwards released st General
Perron’s request ; while Sombre, another adventurer, the husband of the
well-known Begam Samri obtained the pargana of Jhérsa.

_ Meanwhile the history of the semi-detached pargana  of Rewdri
had been somewhat different. In the time of Aurangzeb, an Ahfr of
Phe village of Bolni south-east of Rewéri, by name Nand Rém, rose
1nto the royal favour, and was made governor of the pargana of Rewéri.
His eldest son, Rao Bél Kishan, fell fighting in the royal cause against
Nadir Shab, in 1789 op,, at Karndl. %he gecond son, Rao Giijar Mal,
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was granted the titles of Rao Bah&dur and Commander of fite thousand CHAP. 1 B

and the government of the parganas of Narnsul sand Hissdr; in him
the power of his family reached its culminating point. He erected forts

H'i;t_o-ry.

at Guraora and Gokalgarh; at the latter place, what were formerly _History of
known as Gokal Sicca rupees were minted. His successors, his son Rao g:aw"if ‘:ﬁg
Bbawéni Singh, and grandson Rao Dalel Singh, were incompetent, and Ap¢re,

allowed their minister Mittar Sain, an Ahfr of Bshror, to become the
real ruler of the territory, although the nominal authority continued
with the same family. Rao Dalel Singh died childless in his youth,
and the widow of Rao Bhawéni Singh adopted a boy, called Rém
Singh, of the Bohri family. After Mittar Sain’s death, Rém Singh fell
in an unsuccessful contest against the Mahrattas who put to death the
family of Mittar Sain, and placed a younger brother of Ra4m Singh, by
name Hira Singh, on the gaddi. Hira Singh does not, however, seem
to have ruled long, and after his death the pargana was seized by
ZguFi Rém, a Bakkdl of Rewdri. At this juncture, Tej Singh, the
andestor of the present leading Ahir family, came to the front :- he was
descended from a branch of the same stock as that of Géjar Mal, which
had settled at Mirpor, a village a few miles north-east of Rewdri, He was
in alliance with tbe Mahrattas, and, being appealed to by the mother of
Rém Singh, attacked and put to death Zauki Rém and established his own
power, which he consolidated by estdblishing his four brothers in frontier
villages—Kishan Sahai in Lisn, Rém Bakhsh in Dhérahera, Sawai Singh
in Asiaki Gaurwds, and Jiwa R4m, in Ndngal Pathéni. Later on he joined
the British, but seems not to have served them whole-heartedly; so that,
although in those days parganas this side of the Jamna were liberally
given away, he obtained only a grant of fifty-eight villages in Istamrdr.

The little detached parganat of Shahjahdnpur, to the south of Rewdri,
is mainly held by Chauhdn Rajputs who claim that Govind R4j, a younger
brother of Piran, one of the ancient line of the Réjas of Nimrdn4, founded
the town and all the villages of the pargana except Ténkri. Nimrsna
is & few miles west of Shéhjahdnpur: the Réja, who is regarded as the head
of the Chauhdns, and traces his descent from the famous Pirthvi R4j of
Delhi, is now a semi-independent feudatory of Alwar. This traditional ac-
count of the founding of Shéhjahénpur differs from that given in Elliot’s
Glossary, where the name of the founder is stated to have been Thl4d Singh, a
relative of the Nimrand chief ; but this appears to apply only to the founding
of the modern town, as it is stated that he obtained leave to rebuild the
town which had formerly been called Lohéna, and had been destroyed
in consequence of its harbouring, as at present, notorious robbers. Elliot
states also that the pargana was formerly called Lohdna or Shdhjahénpur.
Chaubdri. The pargana is said to have been held as & fief under the R4ja
of Nimréni until the latter part of the last century, when it was wrested
after a fight from the Chauhdns by the Haldias, dependants of the R4ja of
Jaipur, who were still in possession as istamrdrddrs in 1808,

It does not fall within the scope of this work to give an account of the
events which led to the treaty of Anjengaon : it is sufficient to note that by
that treaty, dated 80th December 1803, Daulat Rao Scindia ceded to the
English all his forts, territories, and rights in the Dogb, or country situated
between the Jamna and Ganges, and all his forts, territories, rights, and
interests in the countries which are to- the northward of those of the Réjas
of Jaipur and Jodhpur and of the Réna of Gohad. Inthe schedule list of

these territories occur the following :—
. : : R
BEsUMBD JAGIRS BBLONGING Y0 GANwpAL PEmmow, . -

Blho;'& v o v aee sse vor oo [ 20,400 ‘
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Rs.
. UnpEA Georax TaoMAS,
Jhajjar - . - « 1,51,980
BerongINe T0 MB, JOHN BAPTIsT.
Rewsri ce e e e e e e 41,200
Téora . . 85,000
Firozpur Jhirke ... e e 19,864
MABALS FORMERLY BELONGING T0o GENERAL DUBOIGNE,
Pargana of Palwal v . B2,72375
Nah (Noop ) W 1,05,887
Sohna C ee e . 120000
Bikras 15,634
Hodal - 77,620
Hathin e . 178,258

With this treaty the history of Gurgéon as a British district commences.

The district at that time (exclusive of the pargana of P4li, which was
transferred to Dethi in 1863), consisted of the eleven parganas—Jharsa,
Sohna, Nih, Hathin, Palwal, Hodal, Punahéna, Firozpur, Bahora, Rewiri,
and Shshjahdnpur. In 1808 it was a principle of English policy to make
the Jamna, as far as possible, the limit of the actual British possession,
and to interpose between that border and foreign territory a buffer of semi-
independent States ; and in consequence of the effect given to that policy,
it was only gradually that the greater part of the district came under
direct British rule. The history of each pargana was as follows :—

Sohna, Rewdri, Bahora, Ndh were the first to be brought under onr
immediate rule in 1808-9 A, p. Sohna, Bahora, and Rewiri were made
over for a short time by Lord Lake to the Réja of Bhartpar ; but were
subsequently, like Nih, Sohna, and Rewéri, farmed to the Ahir Rao Tej
Singh of Rewéri, and Bahora to Rao Rém Bakhsh, his brother. In
1808-9 these parganas were seftled by Mr. Fraser. Hodal was the next
pargana to lapse on the death, in 1813 4.p., of Muhammad Khan, Afridi, to
whom it had been given in jdgir. Palwal was held by Nawab Murtaza
Khan in istamrdr at a quit rent of Rs. 45,000 per annaum, and lapsed at
his death in 1817 A.p. Hathin was similarly held at a quit rent of
Rs. 80,000 per annum by Faizullah Beg Khan until his death in 1823, All
these jdgirddrs were strangers to the district, who received these grants
for distinguished military service.

Shé,hjahﬁnfur was continued in jégir to Harnarain Haldia, who held
it in 1803, until his death in 1824, when it lapsed. Téora was msde over
to the Bbartpur Réja,and was held by th?t State until the capture of
Bhartpur in 1826. Pubahéna and Firozpurfwere granted, as also wasthe
present State of Loharu, to Abmad Bakhsh Khan,s vakil of the Réja of
Alwar, who had rendered great services to Lord Lake. Ahmad Bakhsh
Khan was succeeded by bis son Shams-ud-din Khan as Nawgb of Firozpur
and Punahdna, while Lohdru was bestowed on his younger brothers ;
disputes arose, and an order was passed by Government that Shams-ud-din
Khan shocld administer Lobdru as well as Firozpur and Punahdna, his
brothers being provided for by pensions. Mr. W. Fraser, the Commissioner
of Delhi, objected to this decision, and procured a delay in its being given
offect. In revenge for this, Shams-ad-din Kban procured his assassination
by aretaiver of hisown. The man was arrested, the Nawdb’s complicity
in the crime was proved, and both he and the assassin were hanged at
Delhi in 1836, and the parganas of Firozpur and Punahéna were annexed

to the district. Such is the ordinarily received acconnt ; among the people, !

another storylis current as to the motive of the assassination. The pargana

- of Jbarsa also lapsed in 1886, up to which date it was held by the Begem
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Samrf, on a grant made previous to the British conquest, and confirmed  to
her for her life in 1803.% :

After this cession the district remained unchanged in extent until
the Mutiny ; 1t differed from the present district in including the pargana
of Pali-Pakal (27 villages), and a few Palwal villages now in Deﬁ}li', and
exclading the villages annexed after the Mutiny ; 1t was divided into six
tahsils :— '

Tahsils, Pargana included.
Sobna  ,,, <.  Jharsa, Pali, Sohna, T4oru.
Bewari ., ..  Rewiri, Bahora, 8hibjah4npur,
Palwal «  Palwal,
Nih ...  Nih, Hathin.
Punahéns ,,, . Punahdna, Hodal,
Ffrozpur ,,, N Firozpur. :

At first the head-quarters of the civil officers of the district were at
Bhérawas near Rewdri, where for some years there was a strong frontier
cantonment, of which but few vestiges now remaiu. Gurgéon was then
a cavalry station, the laud which now forms the estate of Hiddyatpur
Chdoni having been taken up tor that purpose in the middle of Begam
Sawrd’s pargana of Jharsa, probably in part with the object of keeping
in check the troops which the Begam keps at Jharsa where several tombs
of French otticers exiss. After the cession of the Ajmere territory, the
Bhérawss force was sransferred to Nasirabad, and the Civil Officer removed
to Gurgdon. Up to that time vhe district had been in the direct charge
of the LDelhi Kesident ; but in 181Y Mr. Cavendish received charge of it,
with the title of Principal Assistans Commissioner of the Southern Division ;
in 1382 this title was cnanged to that of Collector and Magistrate. The
best known to the people among the older officers are Messrs. Uavendish
disguised as Ghamandi Sahib, J. F. Gubbins, C. Gubbins, M. R. Gubbins,
F. B8, Gubbins, John Lawrence, Routh and kraser, and above all Mr. G. C.
Barnes as Settlement Officer.

In old days iife of the district had been turbulent and stirring, but it
now geemed to have settled down into a peacetul and quiet routine; the
feudatory races had betaken themselves to agricuiture, the higher castes to
agriculture snd our service; and old feuds, if not extinct, were at least
dormant, When in May 1357 the Meerut mutineers eutered Delhi Mr.
Ford of the Bengal Civil Service, was Collector of Gurgdon. He at first,
with the assistance of a body of Pataudi sawdrs who were i attendance on
him, drove off some troopers of the 3rd Light Uavalry who hdd come over
from Delhi to attack the station, and suppressed an outbreak in the jail.
Bus eventually he was cowpelled to. leave the station, which was thereupon
plandered and burnt, and proceeded vid Sailam and Palwal to Hodal,
which he reached on the 14th May. He wasaccompanied by four or five
clerks and others and on the way picked np the Customs Officers at
Bhundsi, Yailani and Palwal ; on the 15th May he reached Mathra, whence
he returned to Hodal on the 20th, accompanied by four or five English-
men and one hundred Buartpur Horse. At Hodal he remained until
the 20th May, when he was compelled to leave by the mutiny of
gome Bhartpur and Alwar troops which had meantime joined him, On the
day before the Mutiny, he had proceeded to the large village of Saundhad,
a tew miles distant, and had compelled the people to give up a gun which
they had taken from Hodal. On the 29th he started for Palwal, accompanied
by some thirty Europeans, Customs Officers, fugitives from Delhi and others
who had joined him; on the 80th May the party proceeded from Palwal to

c * For a full account of this grant, see Punjab Record for 1872, No, 1 of Privy Council
REoN, .
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the ferry over the Jamna at Chdensa, intending to cross over to Bulandshahr.
Hostile demonstrations on the Bulandshahr side of the river prevented
this and the party then proceeded to Mohena, where they were hospitably
entertained by Mir Hiddyat Ali, Risalddir of the 4th Bengal Irregular
Cavalry, a gentleman who was subsequently rewarded/by a grant of the
village (since trapsferred to Delhi) in jdgir. On the 8th June Mr. Ford left
Mohena for Sohna, which he reached on the 9th, and there found a force
of the Jaipur Contingent, under Captain Eden, which had come across by
Téoru after a fight with the Meos. This force afterwards marched to
Palwal and Hodal, and on the 1st July Mr. Ford joined the British camp at
Delhi, where he remained until the 18th October.

Meanwhile the general state of the country had been as
follows :— '

‘I'he Meos were up at once and plundered T4oru, Sohna, Firozpur,
Punahéna, Pinangwan, and Nih. At Nah there was a long fight
between the Khénzidas and police defending the town and the Meos
attacking it, and a large number of Khénzidas were treacherously put
to death after their surrender. Except in Mewdt there was no general
or widespread distarbance; but no sooner was the pressure of our rule
removed, than old feuds which had apparently long been buried burst
into life, ln Palwal there is a tribe of J4ts, known as Surot, inhabiting
Hodal and the surrounding villages, and in alliance with a Pathén
village called Seoli. Adjoiming these are the villages owned by auother
Jé&t tribe known as Rawats, and between the R4wats and Seoli there had
been before 1803 a quarrel which had cost many lives on either side.
The Réwats also had an old feud with the Chirklot tribe of Meos, their
western neighbours, originating ina claim of the former to the village of
Kot, out of which they affirm that they were cheated by the craft of a
kiningo in the time of the Mughal Emperors, The quarrel had long
lain dormant, but now the Rdwats were attacked both east and west
by their enemies, and allied themselves with the Rajputs of Hathin, and
the fight went on for months. It is said that this warfare was not
uncharacterized by acts of courtesy: when the women brought their
husbands their food, the fighting ceased : when a prisoner was captured, he
was ordinarily treated well and released; when one party fell short of
ammunition, 1t notified the fact to the enemy, and hostilities were suspended
until the arrival of further supplies. On the whole, the Rdwats trinmphed ;
and on one occasion a runaway horse brought the leader of their enemies, a
lambarddr of Kot, into their ranks ; there he was killed, his head was cui
oft and kept a few days in Bahin, the chief R4wat village; but the Kot
men, when they saw this inverted their war drum, and until they have had
their revenge, inverted the drum must remain. Eventually a British force
came to the assistance of the Rawats, who were supposed to be on the part
of the Government; but at first the only result was a heavy Joss to them, as,
having advanced with a small English force and relying on its protection,
they were engaged in plundering the Meo villages, when suddenly a strong
hostile force of mutineers appeared ; our troops had to retreat, and many
Réawats were surprised and killed. ‘ ‘

In Firozpur there were two Meo chaudhris of the Chirklot clan—Chén
Khan of Bazidpur and Kabir of Bukhéraka ; these men, who were closely .
related, had taken different sides in a quarrel which had originated in the
murder of a lambarddr of Badarpur by a villager of Khuspuri in the time of
Nawsb Ahmad Bakhsh Khan. In 1857 the quarrel broke out afresh,
and all the Chirklot and some of the other villages of the neighbourhood
were divided into two factions, headed respectively by Chfnd Khan and
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Kabir., Kabir burnt and plundered the villages of Aterna, Shamsabad, CHAP. I, B.

Shddipur, Aklimpuar, and Chéntipur, a hamlet of Bhédas; and then Chind _ —

Khan assembled his men and burnt Bokhéraka and plundered Imémnagar. History.

ﬁinally, both parties mustered in strength, and a fight, which lasted eight Mutiny,
days, took place on the boundary of Badarpur and Bukhéraka ; the resuls '

was indecisive, the loss on each side was some fifty or sixty killed. In the

time of Siiraj Mal, the Bhartpur chief, the grandfather of Ch4nd Khan and

Kabir were men of note among the Meos of that day : Saraj Mal sent for

them to Hathin, Kabir’s ancestor declined the invitation and escaped;

Chand Khan’s grandfather complied, and was sawn asander.

Rao Tej Singh of Rewari, who has been mentioned above, left three
sons, Paran Singh, Nathu Rém and Jawshar Singh. Jawdbar Singh
aied childless, but Pdran Singh had one son, Tula Rdm, and Nathu
Rém one son, Gopal Deo: and Tula Rim and Gopal Deo were the
representatives of the family at the time of the Mutiny. HBExtravagance
and family quarrels had involved them in grave pecuniary embatrrasswents
from which there appeared to be but little hope of their extricating
themselves. On the outbreak of the Mutiny and the cessation of all
effective British authority, Rdo T'ula R4m at once assumed the government
of the parganas of Rewari and Bahora, collected revenue, raised {orces,
cast guns, and kept the country quiet and protected it frowr the Meos.
No acts of oppression were ever charged against him or his cousin,
who acted as his general ; and he did to some extent keep up communicas
tion with the British, but, on the other hand, he undonbtedly intrigued
with the Delbi Couri; he pursued in fact a temporising policy, waiting
to see how matters would go before declaring hiwself tov openly on
either side, and meanwhile anxious to keep safe the country which
be hoped to obtain as bis share. Iinally, when a British force cume
marching towards Rewdri from Delhi, he and his brother disubeyed the
summons to attend at the British camp and fled. This led to the
confiscation of the zstamrdr; Tula Rdm and Gopdl Deo both died as
fogitives, the one at Kabul, the other at Bikaner. ]

As already rclated, Rao Tula Raw extended his rule over Bahera ; bub
in that pargane there were a few Meo villages, and they had declined to
acknowledge his authority, and were plundered and burnt. The Jéts
of the village of Bahora live in continual dread of their powerful and
turbulent Meo neighbours, and so aided Tula Rdm during his short sway.
But when his power collapsed, they were at once attacked by the Meos:
the conflict took place at Jaurdsi where the Jéis assembled. For two days
the fight lasted, but the Jéts were driven back on the small conical hill
close to the village, and there one huundred and eleven Jats, Abirs, and ]
Brahmins are said to have fallen ; the Meo loss was eighty.

On the 18th October Mr. Ford returned to Gurgéon. Order was
quickly restored in Jharsa, Palwal, and Rewdri; but the Meos held out
longer. They were, however, defeated at Raisina, where Mr. Clifford, s.c.,
was killed, at Ghasera, Rupraka and Mau, and then the country gradaally
settled down. ‘The Nawabs of Jhajjar and Farukhnagar and the Réja of
Ballabgarh were executed, and their states confiscated; and the
Farukhnagar villages were at once annexed to the Gurgéon district, as was
also the royal demesne of Kot-Kdsim, Thirteen villages and parts of five
other villages were confiscated for various acts of rcbellion and murder,
besides four estates which had belonged to Tula Rém and Gopdl Deo ; and
the history of the Mutiny may now be closed with the record of one of its
results, the transfer of the district with the rest of the Delhi territory from
the North-West Provinces to the Punjab in $he beginping of 1858, -7
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Thers is nob much in the history of the district since the Mutiny which

calls for notice. The pargana of Kot-Kdsim, which had been annexed

to the district after the Mutiny, was made over to Jaipur in 1860, In 1861,

g new sub.divisional arrangement was effected, and the district, which had

formerly consisted of 6 tahsils or sub-divisions, was now constituted into 5,

among which the parganas were distributed as shown in the subjoined
list s—

Name of tahsil, Name of parganea,

Y¥arukhnagar,

Jharsa.

Gurgion ,,,

Part of Sohna.
Part of Bahora.
Rewari,
Shébjahanpur,
Néh,

Hathin,

Rewsri

sy

Nih Tdoru.

Port of Sohna,
Tart of Bahora,
Palwal.

Falwal ..

E g -

Part of Sohna.
Hodal,

) Punahéna,
Firozpur -
Firozpur,

The pargana of Pali had been transferred to the Delhi district. The
following lists will show the further transfers of villages to and from this
district, which have occurred since 1861 :—

1l,— Villages transferred from Gurgdon to Delhi on lst May 1863.

Bajri, Pali, Ranhera, Sakriwa, Firozpur, Karnerah, Kheri, Madalpur. Majesar, Naglah
Juan, Jairu, Bahélpur, Aterna, Harphala, Shihpur, Kilgion, ﬂlalaira,pLo;ai, SJikri,‘Pa.gghra.
gﬁlaﬁl_,“l’anehra Khurd, Naraholi, Fatahpur Biloch, Narela, Hirapur, Mohena, Shahjabénpur,

, Bijjepur. I N

Pikal, Paota, Tikri Khera, Dhaunj, Zakupur, Tarohi, Salokri
Kharkhara, Khosi Jamélpur, Gotra Mohabbatalfad,,Ma;lgar,’ ga N~
Mobyapur,

Alampur, Aldwalpur, Kot,
urpur, bhamaspur, Sinpar, Mahola,

II.—Villages transferred to Gurgdon from Rohtak on 1st May 1861,

Mubdrikpur, Sult4dnpur, Kaliawas, Akbarpur, Jhanj 4 i
Daboda, Alim-ud-dinpur, Palri, 2 P v, Tkbilpur, Khurrampur Dumda,

Réjupur. Mushaidpur,  Jarfun, Shekhpur Majri, Birhera, Karaula,
Fézilp\?r?gana' Khandsa, Baksinka, Faridpur, Mahchéns, Basaunia, Tirpari, Juniéwas,

III-Villages transferrsd to Qurgdon from Delhi on 1st May 1863,
Chapraula, Pirthala, Taranpur, Daula, Chandu, Budhera, Makrauls.” '
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Mr. Froude-Tucker, Archaological Surveyor, Northern Circle,
has kindly contributed the following description of the interesting
archaeological remains of the distriet :—

“The district of Gurgdon is well endowed with buildings of
archmological interest, but these are Muhammadan, almost without excep-
tion. Monuments of Hindu origin are conspicuous by their absence,
and the predominance of Isldim may perhaps be traced to the propinquity
of old Delhi, the stronghold of the invader.

The most interesting towns from an archmological point of view,
are Palwal and Sohna. In the former place we find two masjids
bearing inscriptions of the beginning of the 18th century, while at
the latteris & mosque dating from the first year of the 14th century.
In various towns and villages scattered throogh the district, these are
supported by a series of monuments representative/of each successive

century.

Perhaps the most interesting building in the district is the mosque
at Kotla, dating from the reign of Muhammad Shah Tughlaq. It
is partly ruined, but its conservation will shortly be undertaken by

Government.

The Muhammadan architecture of Gurgfon does not possess any
unusual features. The earliest buildings are of the pillared-hall type,
erected from the spoil of Hindu temples and following the same princi-
ples of construction, while a reversion to this type is to be found in
s few monuments of the time of Akbar. The intervening buildings

ortray the characteristics of the middle and late Pathdn styles, and
although true examples of the Lodi style are wanting, yet the ome
distinctive feature of the local style may perhaps be traced back to
Lodi inflaence. This feature is to be met with chiefly in neighbourhood
of Sohna where some of the buildings are of unplastered stone, rough
hewn, with projecting patterns of coloured stones inserted as decoration,

At Farukhnagar the only bnildings of archaeological interest are the
Shish Mahal and its-attendant gateways built by Faujddr Khan in 1733 A.D.,
and a mosque of the same date.

At Sohna are many monuments of interest, among which the follow-
ing may be noticed i—

The Bara Khamba with the mosque attached to it (now used as a
rest-house), which is believed to date from 1301 A.D; the Dargah
of Nazzam-ul-Haqq with a picturesque tomb and a mosque of red and
buff sandstone bearing the date 1481 A, N, This building was visited
by General Cunningham in 1882 (A. 8. R, volume XX, page 136), and the
Firmsn bearing Akbar’s aignat_ure. and other }nteresting documents
geen by him, and these are still in the possession of the managers of
the mosque; the Qutb Kha,n-ki-Maspd:, built_of variegated loc:_a.l stone
with red ssndstone in addition within, is late Pathdn in style

- gnd an interesting and picturesque example of the period. In addition
to these mention must be made of the dome over the famous hot springs
in the centre of the town. This is said to be of great antiquity, bus
its architectural claims are few. It was repaired m 1774 A. D. by
Rustam Kban, Pathdn. ~

The two tombs lying to the west of the town and locally known as
the L&l and Kéla Gumbaz, are of interest as they are survivals of the
Kamboh Settlement, the site of which is still marked by extensive ruins.

CHAP.I1, B,
History.
Interesting

archmological
remains,



28
GurasoN Districr. ] [Parr A,

CHAP. 1, B. A large fort picturesquely crowning the hill behind the town was
Histos constructed by the Jéts of Bhartpur who took possession of the town
18Y0TYs  after Bahddur Singh of Ghasera was defeated and killed by Straj Mal.

Interesting It was unfinished when the British occupabion took place, and is now
archeeological iy ruins.
remains,
At Bhundsi, 73 miles north of Sohna, is a fine Dargah mosque
of the late Pathdn style, said to have been built by the Khanzddés

of Mewdt.

Near Malab, 4 miles south of Nih, in the village of Kotla, is the
mosque and tomb of Bahddur Khban Nahir. In these bnildings red
sandstone and grey quartzite are skillfully ccmbined in a very effective
and well-built structure. Over the ruined gateway is an inscription giving
the date of its building as 1892—1400 A, D. The groupe is
raised on a high platform and is very strikingly situated in a hollow
of the hills which at this point are crowned by the ruins of an ancient
fortress. Near the village is a lake mentioned by Baber in his memoirs.
(see. A, S. B, volume XX, page 129). "

, Gurgdon cawnob boast of any great archmological possession, but
the decaying mosque of Aliwardi Khan near the station is certainly
picturesque, while the graves of two French officers of the Begam
Samru’s army are of historical interest. '

At ] Firozpur are many ruined tombs and shrines indicating its
former importance, but none are of particular interest. The Jima Masjid
dates from 1824 A. D.

At Palwal we are again in the widst of interesting antiquities,
the oldest of which is probably the Jima Masjid, a pillared-hall with
sandstone columns said to have been taken from a Hindu temple de-
dicated to Gobind Savaji. It is also known as the lkrdmw4li Masjid,
anDfrom an inscription over the Mihrdb appears to date from 1210

.. The Idgah of Ghdzi Shahdb-ud-din consists of a single west wall

- divided into 15 bays and flanked by two towers. The centre bay is
inseribed with the date 1211 A, D., but the building has been much
altered, .

Just outside the town on the east is the tomb of Roshan Chirdgh
built of red sandstone and dating from 1661 A. D, The saint is said
to -have levied a tax of one store from every cartload that passed
Bhartpur to Delhi for the building of Shih Juhén’s palace and with
these the tomb was constructed.

At Rewdri the most interesting monumentis the Dargah of Savvid
Ibrdhim Séhib, whose death, according to a modern insc%?i)tion seﬂp
- over the entrance, took place in 420 A. H.=1029 A.D, The mosque
probably dates from some 800 years later.

The L&l Masjid, builb of red sandstone, piers and lintels, dates
from the time of Akbar. There are two picturesque tanks of no great
antiquity, but that neavest the railway station has a groupe of
picturesque Hindd Chattris on its banks.  There are also two Saraogi
temples.”



